ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 7, 2007
1:33 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas

Senat or John Cowdery
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 40
"An Act relating to reapplications for the Al aska |ongevity
bonus program and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to consider
W TNESS REQ STER

Senat or W el echowski

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 40

Pat Luby, Advocacy Director

AARP

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 40

Janet d ark, Assistant Comn ssioner

Departnent of Health & Social Services

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai l abl e for questions on SB 40

Stacie Kraly, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Cvil Division

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2007



Departnent of Law
Juneau, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avail abl e for questions on SB 40

Ellie Fitzjarrald, D rector

Di vi sion of Public Assistance

Department of Health & Social Services

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avail abl e for questions on SB 40

Frederick Sturn, representing hinself
Mat - Su Val | ey AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 40

Doris Carpenter, representing herself
Mat - Su Val | ey AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 40

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS called the Senate Health, Education and
Social Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:33:30

PM Present were Senators Cowdery, Thomas, Elton, Dyson, and
Chai r Davis.

SB 40- LONGEVI TY BONUS REAPPL| CATI ONS

CHAI R DAVI S announced SB 40 to be up for consideration.
1:34:41 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI, sponsor of SB 40, said that it related to
reapplication for the |ongevity bonus, and he believes that the
bonus represents | ong-standi ng Al aska val ues and smart policy.

SENATOR ELTON noved to adopt the proposed comrmittee substitute
to SB 40, Version /C, as the working docunent. There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

1:35:46 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI explained that the commttee substitute
made a sinple adm nistrative correction to give jurisdiction to

the comm ssioner of the Departnent of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) .

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 7, 2007



He said that the bonus went back to 1915, listed historical
facts about the bonus and the requirenents over the years, and
how adm ssion to the program was ended in 1996. Funding for the
bonus was ended in 2003 by former governor Frank Mirkowski. No
anal ysis was done to determne the inpact of this change on the
econony. Many seniors relied heavily on the bonus. He urged the
committee to join himin supporting the bill.

1: 38: 48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI expl ai ned t hat t he problem wth
reinstituting the bonus was that the current statute required
continual application in order to maintain eligibility; section
1 of his bill would require that the comm ssioner of the DHSS
accept applicants who were eligible when the bonus funding was
cut. The bonus |law had remained active even though the funding
was no |longer provided. SB 40 would require applicants to have
been eligible in 2003, and have nmintained continuous state
residency since that date. New applicants would not be all owed.
Provisions are also included about the reapplication date, the
right to determ ne whether an applicant neets requirenents, the
anmount of the nonthly bonus, and an effective date.

1:40:46 PM

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director for the Al aska AARP, said that many
of the AARP nenbers were delighted that the governor had
reinstated the funding in her budget. He urged the commttee to
approve the bill.

1:41: 55 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked M. Luby whether his organization thought
t he bonus shoul d be needs-based.

1:42: 51 PM

MR. LUBY replied that many people based their retirenent budgets
on the longevity bonus. The AARP's position was that governnent
noney should be first given to those nost in need.

1:43: 59 PM

SENATOR CONDERY remarked that |ike the permanent fund, the
| ongevity bonus shoul d not be given on an as-needed basis.

1:45:40 PM

SENATE HES COWM TTEE - 3- February 7, 2007



JANET CLARK, Assistant Conm ssioner of the Departnment of Health
and Social Services (DHSS), said that the DHSS supported the
bill, and she would explain the fiscal inpact.

STACI E KRALY, Assistant Attorney General for the Departnment of
Law, said that the departnent’s review of the statute showed a
need for reconstitution of the program Under the existing
statute an applicant had to reapply consistently to remain
eligible, but wth the de-funding of the program everyone
stopped applying. The statute thus needs to be fixed to allow
for reapplication.

1:49: 13 PM
CHAI R DAVI S asked if such a change could be nade within SB 40.
1:49: 23 PM

M5. KRALY replied that the issue should be addressed in SB 40. A
process for re-determning eligibility needs to be created.

1: 50: 41 PM

CHAIR DAVIS said that sone issues with the bill mght be better
addressed in another conmttee.

1:51: 11 PM

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if people who left the state when the
bonus funding was cut would be allowed to re-apply, and how they
woul d be tracked.

1:51: 38 PM

M5. KRALY replied that the i ssue needed to be addressed.

1:52: 15 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said that according to the current bill
peopl e who left the state when the program funding was cut would
no |l onger be eligible if they returned.

1: 52: 59 PM

M5. KRALY replied that the process of re-qualification needed to
be exam ned.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2007



1: 53: 43 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked if the DHSS would have the discretion to
determ ne the residency requirenent.

1:54: 26 PM

M5. KRALY replied that the DHSS would not be able to establish
baseline eligibility for residency, but the bill could create
litigation in specific scenarios.

1:55:42 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said that technically every applicant would
be in violation of the statute because it required nonthly
applications, and agreed that an anendnent needed to be nade.

1: 56: 43 PM

M5. CLARK said that reestablishing the bonus would require
policy guidance and retooling of the bill.

1:57: 31 PM

SENATOR THOVAS asked if there would be a provision for those who
may forget to apply for the bonus on tine.

1:57: 54 PM

M5. KRALY replied that the legislation was codified |aw of the
state of Al aska, so all due process would apply.

1:58: 16 PM

CHAIR DAVIS said they could review the fiscal note at a |ater
date, and asked Ellie Fitzjarrald to testify.

1:58: 55 PM
ELLI E FI TZJARRALD, Public Assistance Director for the Departnent
of Health and Social Services (DHSS), explained that she could

tal k about the fiscal analysis, but did not plan to testify.

1:59: 14 PM

SENATE HES COWM TTEE - 5- February 7, 2007



FREDERI CK STURN, representing hinself, said that the longevity
bonus was inportant to many seniors he knew, especially wonen
w thout retirenent plans. Living off social security alone was
difficult with rising prices.

2: 00: 54 PM

DORI S CARPENTER, representing herself, said that she thought the
reapplication issue was not very inportant and that continua
reapplication was not necessary.

2:03: 00 PM

SENATOR CONDERY said that he thought reapplication should be a
non-i ssue, and asked how many eligible people had died since the
program fundi ng was cut.

2:04:10 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said that the nunber of eligible residents
has dropped from 18,000 to 13, 000.

He explained that the governor line-item vetoed the funding in
2003, and that there had been w de support from the |egislature
for the program He agreed with Senator Cowdery in that the
bonus shoul d not be needs- based.

2: 06: 09 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that he heard the cost of reinstituting the
program would be $33 nmllion, and wondered if early appliers
would add an additional <cost to this figure because of
retroactive paynents.

2:08: 06 PM

SENATOR COADERY pointed out that the fiscal note on SB 40
required the bonus to be declared as suppl enmental incone.

2:08: 41 PM
CHAIR DAVIS said that the commttee would be putting the bil
aside to allow the sponsor to confer with the Departnent of Law,

and the commttee would likely review the bill again tw weeks
fromthat date.

SENATE HES COWM TTEE - 6- February 7, 2007



CHAIR DAVIS, finding no further business, adjourned the neeting
at 2:09: 20 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2007



